
 

From: Democratic Services Unit – any further information may be obtained from the reporting 
officer or from Charlotte Forrest, Senior Democratic Services Officer at 
charlotte.forrest@tameside.gov.uk or on 0161 342 2346, to whom any apologies for absence 
should be notified. 

 

SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 
 

Day: Tuesday 
Date: 26 January 2021 
Time: 10.00 am 
Place: Zoom Meeting 

 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page 
No 

1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive any declarations of interest.  

3.   MINUTES  1 - 10 

 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the proceedings of the 
Speakers’ Panel (Liquor Licensing) held on 11 January 2021 and 12 January 
2021 (attached). 

 

4.   APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE - JOLLY 
HATTERS, 119 TOWN LANE, DENTON, M34 2DJ  

11 - 126 

 To consider the attached report of the Assistant Director, Operations and 
Neighbourhoods. 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:charlotte.forrest@tameside.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 
 

11 January 2021 
 

Commenced:10.00am Terminated: 2.30pm  

Present: Councillors Sweeton (Chair), Bowden and Quinn 

In Attendance: Mike Robinson 

James Horton 

Nicola Healey 

David Joy 

Ashleigh Melia 

PC Thorley 

PC Lawton 

Nicola Briers 

James Mallion 

Rebecca Penfold 

Jeitan Panchani 

Regulatory Services Manager 

Regulatory Compliance Officer 

Regulatory Support Officer 

Legal Representative TMBC 

Legal Services Officer TMBC (observer) 

Greater Manchester Police 

Greater Manchester Police 

Trading Standards Officer (observer) 

Public Health 

Counsel 

Premises Licence Holder 
 
 
9.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
10. MINUTES 
 
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the proceedings of the Speakers’ Panel (Liquor 
Licensing) held on 12 August, 13 August and 20 August 2020 (attached). 
 
 
11. 
 

APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE – JITS SUPERSHOP, 21 
MARKET STREET, STALYBRIDGE.  SK15 2AL 

 
Consideration was given to an application for a review of a premises licence for Jits Super Shop, 21 
Market Street, Stalybridge.  SK15 2AL. 
 
It was explained that Jits Super Shop, 21 Market Street, Stalybridge, SK15 2AL, was first granted a 
Premise Licence under the Licensing Act 2003 on 8 September 2006.  Mr Jeitan Panchani had 
been the Premises Licence Holder and Designated Premises Supervisor since September 2013. 
 
On 23 November 2020 the Licensing Authority received an application from Tameside MBC Trading 
Standards Service (in its capacity as a Responsible Authority under the Licensing Act 2003) for a 
review of the Premises Licence for Jits Super Shop. 
 
An application was made by Nicola Briers on behalf of Trading Standards to exclude the public and 
press for part of the hearing, namely, whilst the CCTV evidence was presented.  The grounds of the 
application were that the CCTV identified persons under the age of 18.  
 
Having applied the public interest test (Sch 12A LGA 1972/Reg 14 of the Licensing Hearing Regs) 
the Panel decided to proceed with the hearing in private but only whilst the CCTV was played in the 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3.



 
 

 
 

hearing and any questions regarding the CCTV content were asked and answered.  The Panel 
considered that to proceed with this part of the hearing in public would be prejudicial to the interests 
of the young persons identified on the CCTV and more generally, the interests of justice.  Once this 
part of the hearing was concluded the hearing returned to public session.  (This part of the hearing 
was repeated as a Panel member dropped out of the hearing for a short period). 
 
Mr Robinson presented the report to the Panel and identified the steps available to the Panel in 
determining the review (s52 (4) Licensing Act 2003).  Mr Robinson informed the Panel of the brief 
background to the review as set out in the report and summarised the representations received. 
 
Nicola Briers, Trading Standards Officer, then presented the Review application on behalf of 
Tameside MBC Trading Standards Service.  Ms Briers referred the Panel to the Review Application, 
her witness statement and the exhibits identified in the statement (all appended to the report to the 
Panel).  The Panel and those in attendance at the hearing viewed the CCTV in relation to an 
incident at the premises on 19 October 2020 presented by Ms Briers. 
 
James Mallion presented a representation on behalf of Tameside MBC Population Health.  Mr 
Mallion referred the Panel to his written representation (appended to the report to Panel). 
 
Regulatory Compliance Officer James Horton submitted a representation on behalf of the Licensing 
Authority.  Mr Horton referred the Panel to the content of the representation (appended to the report 
to Panel). 
 
PC Thorley presented a representation on behalf of Greater Manchester Police.  PC Thorley 
referred the Panel to his statement (appended to the report to Panel).  PC Lawton then presented 
his statement to the Panel (appended to the report to Panel).  
 
A number of additional written representations were received in relation to the Review as follows: 

 Assistant Principal, Copley Academy  

 Assistant Head, West Hill School 

 Parent of pupil of West Hill School   

These representations were read out to the Panel by Mike Robinson, Regulatory Services Manager. 
 
Ms Penfold (Counsel) on behalf of the Licence Holder then addressed the Panel and read out the 
witness statements provided by the licence holder and the recently appointed manager of the 
premises.  Reference was also made to the Document Bundle served by the Licence Holder which 
included details of till improvements, staff training, increased signage in the premises relating to age 
restricted sales and details of refusals (for the period June – December 2020).  Mr Panchani, 
Premises Licence Holder, also addressed the Panel and responded to questions asked. 
 
All parties were afforded the opportunity to ask questions in relation to the representations made. 
 
All parties were invited to provide a brief statement in summary. 
 
Members of the Panel then retired to carefully consider the written report, representations and 
questions and answers during the hearing in addition to all the information provided.  The Panel 
were accompanied by the Legal Representative and the Principal Democratic Services Officer who 
provided legal and procedural advice only and took no part in the decision making process. 
 
In determining this matter, the Panel has had due regard to: 

 The report to Panel  

 The Review application and representations  

 All oral and written evidence and submissions  

 The Council's Statement of Licensing Policy,  

 The relevant sections of the Licensing Act 2003 and Regulations made thereunder  

Page 2



 
 

 
 

 The Guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of that Act. 
 
The Panel noted that in determining this review it must, having regard to the application and any 
relevant representations, take such steps as identified in s52(4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as it 
considered appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, in particular, the protection of 
children from harm and the prevention of crime and disorder. 
 
The Panel noted the recent history of relevant events at the premises, summarised as follows: 

 Between November 2017 and November 2018 TMBC Trading Standards received 3 
complaints from local schools that the premises were selling both alcohol and cigarettes to 
under age persons. 

 There was a visit to the premises in September 2018 and a discussion with the Licence 
Holder regarding the issue.  Advice was given regarding proxy sales/notices.  The refusals 
book was unavailable for inspection. 

 A meeting was held in February 2019 between TMBC Officers and the Licence Holder 
following a visit to the premises in January 2019 (during which a staff member was abusive 
to a police officer in attendance).  At this meeting advice was given and an agreement 
reached to amend the licence conditions (as an alternative to a licence review).  The licence 
conditions were amended with effect from March 2019 and included conditions relating to 
CCTV, Challenge 25, Refusals book, proxy notices, staff training etc.    

 In June 2019 a complaint was received by TMBC Trading Standards relating to the sale of 
cigarettes from the premises to under age persons/pupils from West Hill School. 

 In September/October 2019 reports were received of illicit/counterfeit tobacco being sold 
from the premises.  A visit revealed no illicit tobacco on the premises.    

 In October 2019 concerns were raised regarding the selling of single cigarettes from the 
premises to local school pupils (West Hill School and Copley Academy).  A further report 
was received in November 2019.   

 On 6 June 2020 alcohol was sold from the premises to under age persons.  Upon the Police 
intervening the alcohol was returned and a refund given.  There were issues with the CCTV 
system at the premises.  A proxy notice was displayed in the premises.  The refusals book 
was available for inspection but had no entries for the previous 12 months. 

 On 16 June 2020 the refusals books was inspected and recent entries had been made. 
Advice was given regarding the sale of age restricted products.  

 In September 2020 a report was received that alcohol had been sold from the premises to 3 
under-age girls.  This report could not be investigated further due to lack of details.   

 In October 2020 two single cigarettes were sold from the premises to an under-age person. 
The person was identified as a pupil of Copley Academy. 

 In November 2020 fireworks were reportedly sold from the premises to an under-age person. 
The till record and CCTV did not identify a sale.    

 In November 2020 a single cigarette appeared to have been sold from the premises to the 
same under-age person who purchased cigarettes from the premises in October 2020.  
There were issues obtaining the CCTV footage.  

 On 23 November 2020 an inspection was undertaken.  The CCTV was not fully compliant.  
The training records were not available for inspection.  
 

The Panel further noted with concern, the health statistics for the Borough/postcode area arising 
from alcohol consumption and use of tobacco and the impact of alcohol and tobacco consumption 
on young persons. 
 
The Panel noted that:  

 The Licence Holder stated that he had problems with staff over a number of years and that 
the staff rather than the Licence Holder were present at the time of the reported under-age 
sales.  The Licence Holder said that he had dismissed staff involved in under-age sales.    

 The Licence Holder had issues with adults purchasing age restricted products for under age 
persons (proxy sales) 

Page 3



 
 

 
 

 The License holder said that reports of sales from the premises (eg fireworks) were not 
always accurate.  

 The Licence Holder had recently taken additional steps to try and prevent the sale of age 
restricted products from the premises, namely, 

 Employing a manager  

 Improving staff recruitment 

 Improved staff training 

 Increased signage in the premises relating to age restricted products and proxy 
sales.  

 A till upgrade (including alert to help prevent under age sales) 

 Trying to prevent young people congregating outside the premises 
 
The Panel concluded that: 
There was a long history of issues at the premises regarding age restricted products.  The Licence 
Holder/DPS was responsible for managing the premises and in doing so must promote the licensing 
objectives.   
 
Despite the imposition of conditions in 2019 and provision of advice there had been no significant 
improvement in preventing the sale of restricted products to under age persons.   
 
The Panel had considered all available options.  
 
The Panel noted the very recent measures taken by the Licence Holder to try to prevent further 
issues arising with regard to the age restricted products.  Whilst the Panel had, in light of the history 
of issues and additional conditions imposed in 2019, seriously considered revoking the premises 
licence, on balance, the Panel concluded that, having regard to proportionality, the Licence Holder 
should be given a further opportunity to demonstrate that with: 

 the additional measures identified by him; 

 a short licence suspension (to reflect the seriousness of the situation and allow the licence 
holder time to fully implement the required changes); and 

 the imposition of additional conditions (to ensure that staff are fully/appropriately trained and 
help prevent future under age sales) 
 

He could manage the premises in a way that prevented under-age sales and promoted the licensing 
objectives.  
 
The Licence Holder was reminded that he was ultimately responsible for what occurred on the 
premises whether he was present or not. 
 
RESOLVED 
The steps to be taken that were considered appropriate to promote the licensing objectives 
are: 
(i) That the licence be suspended for a period of 2 months.  This will enable the Licence 

Holder time to properly put in place the new measures that he has identified. 
(ii) Additional licence conditions to be inserted in Annex 3 of the licence: 

a. A personal licence holder must be present on the premises at any time that 
there is a retail sale of alcohol on the premises.  

b. There shall be no more than 2 customers under the age of 18 years of age 
allowed in the premises at the same time (excluding any persons under the age 
of 18 who are accompanied on the premises by a responsible adult).   

Whilst the Panel could not tie the hands of a future Panel, this decision should be regarded 
as a final opportunity for the Licence Holder to demonstrate that he could promote the 
licensing objectives.  Any future issues may lead to the licence being revoked. 
 

Page 4



 
 

 
 

SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 
 

12 January 2021 
 

Commenced:10.00am Terminated: 12.15pm  

Present: Councillors Sweeton (Chair), Bowden and Quinn 

In Attendance: Mike Robinson 

Rebecca Birch 

David Joy 

Ashleigh Melia 

PC Thorley 

James Mallion 

Richard Taylor 

Joanne Hipkiss 

Adam Hancox 

Regulatory Services Manager 

Regulatory Compliance Officer 

Legal Representative TMBC 

Legal Services Officer (observer) 

Greater Manchester Police 

Public Health 

Gosschalks Solicitors 

Licensing Manager 

Regional Manager, Ei Group 
 
 
12.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 
13. 
 

APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE – THE COCK HOTEL, 
TOWN LANE, DENTON.  M34 7SZ 

 
Consideration was given to an application for a review of a premises licence for The Cock Hotel, 60 
Two Trees Lane, Denton.  M34 .7SZ. 
 
It was explained that the Premises Licence Holder of The Cock Hotel, 60 Two Trees Lane, Denton 
is Ei Group Limited of 3 Monkspath Hall Road, Solihull B90 4SJ.  A copy of the Premises Licence 
was appended to the report to Panel and identified the licensable activities and operating hours for 
the premises. 
 
In April 2020 Mr Michael Andrew became the Designated Premises Supervisor for the premises.  
 
On 4 December 2020 the Licensing Authority submitted an application for a review of the Premises 
Licence.  
 
Mr Robinson presented the Report to the Panel and identified the steps available to the Panel in 
determining the review (s52 (4) Licensing Act 2003).  Mr Robinson informed the Panel of the brief 
background to the review as set out in the report and summarised the representations received 
from: 

 The Licensing Authority 

 Greater Manchester Police 

 Tameside MBC Population Health 
 
Rebecca Birch, Regulatory Compliance Officer presented the Review application (appended to the 
report to the Panel) on behalf of the Licensing Authority.  Ms Birch referred to her witness statement 
and exhibits (appended to the report to the Panel).  Ms Birch informed the Panel that agreement 
had been reached with the Licence Holder to modify the conditions on the licence with a view to 

Page 5



 
 

 
 

promoting the licensing objectives.  Ms Birch had the opportunity to consider the proposed 
conditions.  She confirmed that she was satisfied with the conditions and considered that they would 
meet the licensing objectives going forward. 
 
James Mallion then presented the representation that had been submitted on behalf of Tameside 
MBC Population Health.  The content was noted by the Panel in particular the local levels of 
infection and deaths from Covid and the importance of premises complying with Covid restrictions. 
 
PC Thorley presented a representation (appended to the report to the Panel) on behalf of Greater 
Manchester Police.  Witness statements from PC Thorley and PC Cookson detailed the police 
investigation and the content of the CCTV.  Key extracts of the CCTV recordings of the premises on 
the relevant dates were played in the hearing. 
 
PC Thorley informed the Panel that agreement had been reached with the Licence Holder to modify 
the conditions on the licence with a view to promoting the licensing objectives.  
 
PC Thorley thanked Mr Taylor of Gosschalks for his co-operation in responding to this matter.  PC 
Thorley also thanked PC Cookson for his efforts on the evening of 25 November 2020. 
 
PC Thorley agreed that the proposed conditions were appropriate to meet the licensing objectives. 
 
Mr Taylor on behalf of the Licence Holder, then addressed the Panel and explained that Mr Andrew 
was removed as DPS and tenant within one hour of the report of the breach to Ei Group.  He added 
that Mr Andrew was permitted to remain in the living accommodation of the premises as there was 
currently a Covid related moratorium on evictions from residential premises. 
 
Mr Taylor explained that this issue had provided an opportunity to review and update the current 
conditions.  Mr Taylor informed the Panel that following discussions between the Licence Holder, 
the Licensing Authority and Greater Manchester Police an agreement had been reached, subject to 
consideration/approval by this Panel, in relation to appropriate conditions (to replace those currently 
in Annex 2 to the licence).  The proposed conditions are appended to the Minutes as Appendix A 
and if approved will appear in Annex 3 to the licence). 
 
All parties were afforded the opportunity to ask questions in relation to the representations made. 
 
All parties were invited to provide a brief statement in summary. 
 
Members of the Panel then retired to carefully consider the written report, representations and 
questions and answers during the hearing in addition to all the information provided.  The Panel 
were accompanied by the Legal Representative and the Principal Democratic Services Officer who 
provided legal and procedural advice only and took no part in the decision making process. 
 
In determining this matter, the Panel had due regard to: 

 all oral and written evidence and submissions 

 the Council's Statement of Licensing Policy,  

 the relevant sections of the Licensing Act 2003 and Regulations made thereunder  

 the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of that Act. 
 
The Panel noted that in determining the review it must, having regard to the application and any 
relevant representations, take such steps as identified in s52(4) of the Licensing Act 2003 as it 
considered appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, in particular, the prevention of 
crime and disorder. 
 
The Panel noted the recent incidents at the premises as outlined in the report to Panel and the 
details in the Review Application.  Relevant representations and supporting evidence.  
 

Page 6



 
 

 
 

The Panel noted that: 

 The DPS involved in the breaches of Regulations was immediately dismissed by the Licence 
Holder. 

 Ei Group provided relevant information and advice to the DPS to avoid a breach of the Covid 
restrictions. 

 The now former DPS had initially informed Officers that the incident on 25 November 2020 
was an isolated incident. 

 The former DPS had purchased his own barrels of beer to sell to customers during the 
lockdown.  The barrels were not purchased from or via Ei Group. 

 The premises were operated on the breach dates by invitation only (by the former DPS). 

 The conditions (at Appendix A to this Notice) had been agreed between the Licensing 
Authority, Greater Manchester Police and the Licence holder as appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
The Panel was satisfied that the breaches of the Covid Regulations were due to the conduct of the 
former DPS rather than the Licence Holder. 
 
The Panel considered all available options and carefully scrutinised the proposed conditions.   
 
Having regard to the factors identified above, the Panel considered that the imposition of conditions 
would be a proportionate response to the identified issues and appropriate to promote the licensing 
objectives, in particular the prevention of crime and disorder. 
 
Accordingly, the Panel concluded that the step that it considered appropriate to promote the 
licensing objectives was to modify the conditions attached to the licence.  
 
The Panel thanked Ei Group for their prompt action in removing the DPS and the high level of co-
operation with both the Licensing Authority and GMP. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the conditions at Annex 2 to the licence be removed and replaced at Annex 3 with the 
conditions set out in Appendix A, attached.   
 

Page 7



 
 

 
 

APPENDIX A 
 
 
1. INCIDENT BOOK  
 
An incident book (with the pages numbered sequentially) must be kept on the premises and be 
made available for inspection by responsible authorities.  The incident book must be used to record 
the following:  
(i) Any incident of violence or disorder on or immediately outside the premises  
(ii) Any incident involving controlled drugs (supply/possession/influence) on the premises  
(iii) Any other crime or criminal activity on the premises  
(iv) Any refusal to serve alcohol to persons who are drunk (On sale and off sale premises only)  
(v) Any refusal to serve alcohol to under 18's or anyone who appears to be under 18  
(vi) Any call for police assistance to the premises  
(vii) Any ejection from the premises  
(viii) Any first aid/other care given to a customer  
 
 
2. STAFF TRAINING  
 
Any staff employed at the premises will receive training by the Designated Premises Supervisor on 
first appointment and at least every three months thereafter.  Training will include input on 
preventing underage sales, sales of alcohol to people who are drunk, application of the drugs policy 
and any other relevant matters.  A written record will be kept of all training carried out.  This record 
must be kept on the premises and made available for inspection by any responsible authority.  
 
 
3. CCTV  
 
A tamper-proof digital colour CCTV system must be installed and maintained at the premises to the 
satisfaction of Greater Manchester Police.  
 
The system must run and record continuously for 24 hours a day, 7 days per week and recorded 
footage must be stored for a minimum of 28 days.  
 
The system must provide a clear head and shoulders view to an evidential quality on every 
entry/exit route and within any other vulnerable areas as identified by Greater Manchester Police.  
 
Recorded footage must be provided to a representative of any responsible authority on request. 
Such footage must be provided in an immediately viewable format and must include any software 
etc. which is required to view the footage.  Any discs, portable drives or other storage media onto 
which footage is transferred must be provided by the premises and sufficient stock of such storage 
media must be kept on the premises at all times.  
 
A member of staff who is trained to operate the system and supply footage must be present at the 
premises at all times when licensable activities are taking place.  
 
The Designated Premises Supervisor must ensure that the CCTV system is checked at least once 
every week by a suitably trained member of staff.  This check must include the operation of the 
cameras, the recording facilities, the facilities for providing footage and the accuracy of the time & 
date. A written record of these checks must be kept, including a signature of the person carrying out 
the check.  This written record must be kept on the premises at all times and made available to a 
representative of any responsible authority on request.  
 

Page 8



 
 

 
 

Suitable signage informing customers that a CCTV system is in operation must be placed in 
prominent positions within the premises, including information on the Data Protection Act and the 
Human Rights Act.  
 
 
4. DOOR STAFF  
 
The DPS will risk assess the need for door supervision and engage SIA registered door supervisors 
on such dates, in such numbers and between such timers as identified as necessary by the risk 
assessment.  
 
 
5. CHALLENGE 25  
 
The premises must operate a "Challenge 25" scheme at the premise in relation to age verification 
for alcohol sales and other age-restricted products.  Signs and/or posters must be displayed in 
prominent positions inside the premise to inform customers of this condition.  
 
 
6. REFUSALS BOOK  
 
A refusals book must be kept at the premises and must be used to record all refusals to sell alcohol 
for any reason. Where other age restricted products are sold at the premise, any refusals to sell 
such items to underage persons or persons who appear underage must be recorded.  The details to 
be recorded must be as follows:  
(i) Time, day & date of refusal  
(ii) Item refused  
(iii) Name & address of customer (if given)  
(iv) Description of customer  
(v) Details of I d. offered (if shown)  

 
The refusals book must be made available for inspection by responsible authorities on request.  
 
 
7. DPS VETTING  
 
Future appointments of the Designated Premises Supervisor for the premises will only be made 
following consultation with the Police and Licensing Authority who will vet the individual prior to 
submission of an application. 
 
 
8. PREVENTION OF NOISE BREAKOUT FROM PREMISES  

 
1. To prevent noise nuisance, all windows and doors at the premise must be kept closed at any 

time when regulated entertainment, live music (amplified or unamplified), recorded music or any 
other type of entertainment (amplified or unamplified) is being performed at the premise, except 
to allow people to enter or exit.  

2. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the structure of 
the premises that gives rise to a nuisance.  

3. The Designated Premises Supervisor must ensure that perimeter inspections are undertaken 
every hour when regulated entertainment, live music (amplified or unamplified), recorded music 
or any other type of entertainment (amplified or unamplified) is taking place.  These inspections 
must be recorded in a book which must be made available for inspection to Local Authority 
Officers and Greater Manchester Police on request.  

4. No music to be played outside at any time.  
5. No live music (amplified or unamplified) to be performed at the premises after 23:00.  
 

Page 9



 
 

 
 

9. DRUG POLICY  
 
The management of the premises must introduce a strict "zero tolerance" policy in respect of the 
use and/or supply of illegal drugs on the premises.  The policy to include checks of the toilet areas 
every half-hour whilst the premises are open and suitable signage to be placed in prominent areas 
within the premises. 
 
 
10. PUBWATCH CONDITION  
 
Where a pubwatch scheme is in operation in (town), the designated premises supervisor must be an 
active member of the scheme.  
"Active member" is defined as someone who:  

i. Attends a minimum of 50% of Pubwatch meetings between 1 January and 31 December 
annually.  Attendance at Pubwatch meetings will be measured by the use of written 
records kept by the Chair and/or Secretary of the relevant Pubwatch group.  When 
calculating whether 50% of meetings have been attended by the DPS, any meetings 
cancelled by the Chair/Secretary, or meetings cancelled for any other reason out of the 
control of the DPS will not be counted.  

ii. Actively enforces all collective banning orders imposed by the Tameside pubwatch 
group. The DPS must ensure that any individual subject to a collective banning order by 
the pubwatch group is not allowed to enter or remain on the premises.  If a banned 
individual enters or attempts to enter the premises and attempts to remove them are 
unsuccessful, the DPS must ensure that the police are contacted % asked to assist in 
removing the individual.  

iii. Shares information with other members of the pubwatch group.  Whenever a banned 
individual is refused entry or removed from the premise, the DPS must ensure that the 
other members of the pubwatch group are informed as soon as practicable.  

The DPS must ensure that all members of staff are made aware of all individuals who are currently 
banned by the Tameside pubwatch scheme.  Staff must be regularly updated by the DPS whenever 
individuals are added or removed from the list of banned persons. 
 
 
11. LIST OF AUTHORISED PERSONS  
 
The Designated Premises Supervisor must maintain a written record of all members of staff who are 
authorised to sell alcohol.  This record must include a photograph of the relevant members of staff 
to be kept on the premises at all times and be made available to a representative of any responsible 
authority on request.  
 
 
12. OUTSIDE AREA  
 
The outside drinking area will not be used for the consumption of alcohol or other drinks after 2300.  
 
 
13. NOTICES  
 
Prominent and clear notices to be displayed at all exits requesting customers to respect the needs 
of local residents and to leave the premises and area quietly. 
 
 
14. UNDER 16S  
 
Under 16s will not be permitted on the premises after 19.00 unless they are attending a function or 
event in the function room. 

Page 10



 

Report to:  SPEAKERS PANEL (LIQUOR LICENSING) 

Date: 26 January 2021 

Reporting Officer: Emma Varnam – Assistant Director, Operations & Neighbourhoods  

Subject: APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE – 
JOLLY HATTERS, 119 TOWN LANE, DENTON, M34 2DJ 

Report Summary: Members are requested to determine the application. 

Recommendations: Having regard to the application and the relevant representations, 
Members are invited to take such steps (if any) as it considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  The steps 
available are:- 

a) Modify the conditions of the licence 

b) Exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence 

c) Remove the designated premises supervisor 

d) Suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months 

e) Revoke the licence 

Corporate Plan: Living Well – Improve satisfaction with local community 

Policy Implications: Members are provided with policy guidelines to assist in the decision 
making process. 

Financial Implications: 
(Authorised by the 
statutory Section 151 
Officer & Chief Finance 
Officer) 

There are limited financial implications for the Council, as detailed 
in the report, however, any legal challenge to a policy decision may 
potentially incur costs. 

Legal Implications: 
(Authorised by the 
Borough Solicitor) 

Any decision to revoke/suspend a licence, impose amendments or 
conditions to a licence or to take no action can be challenged by 
way of appeal (in the first instance) to the local Magistrates Court. 

Risk Management: Failure to give full consideration to the determination of licensing 
issues has the potential to impact on public safety. 

Access to Information: The author of the report is Mike Robinson, Regulatory Services 
Manager (Licensing). 

Background Information: The background papers relating to this report can be inspected by 
contacting Mike Robinson 

Telephone: 0161 342 4122 

e-mail: mike.robinson@tameside.gov.uk  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4.

mailto:mike.robinson@tameside.gov.uk


 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Section 51(1) of the Licensing Act 2003 outlines the procedure whereby a responsible 

authority may apply to the Licensing Authority for a review of a premises licence. 
 
1.2 Section 52(3) of the Licensing Act 2003 states that the Authority must, having regard to the 

application and any relevant representations, take such of the steps mentioned in subsection 
(4) (if any) as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. 

 
1.3  The steps mentioned in subsection (4) are:- 
 
 (a) to modify the conditions of the licence; 
 (b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 
 (c) to remove the designated premises supervisor; 
 (d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding 3 months; 
 (e) to revoke the licence. 
 
 
2. REPORT 
 
2.1 Jolly Hatters, 119 Town Lane, Denton, M34 2DJ was first granted a Premises Licence under 

the Licensing Act 2003 on 5 November 2005.  The Premises Licence Holder is Ei Group 
Limited and the most recent Designated Premises Supervisor (DPS) is Deborah McCallum, 
who was in place from 6 March 2020 until 18 September 2020.  A copy of the Premises 
Licence is attached at Appendix 1. 

 
2.2 The Health Protection (Coronavirus Business Closure) (England) Regulations 2020, came 

into force at 14:00 hours on 21 March 2020.  On 4 July 2020, the Prime Minister relaxed 
coronavirus restrictions imposed on all pubs, bars, restaurants and other specified premises 
since 23 March 2020.  The restrictions previously imposed had been in an effort to supress 
the coronavirus outbreak.  

 
2.3 On 4 July 2020, officers from Greater Manchester Police and the Licensing Authority 

conducted an inspection at the Jolly Hatters.  The premises was found to be non-compliant 
with the coronavirus regulations, customers were not maintaining social distancing, multiple 
households were mixing together and the premises were overcrowded.  
 

2.4 Following the visit, the Authorities raised concerns with Ei Group Ltd that the DPS was unable 
to manage the premises effectively and ensure the venue was covid secure.  
 

2.5 On 13 July 2020, the Local Authority received a complaint from a member of the public 
alleging the premises had been trading beyond its terminal hour on 11 July 2020.  A review 
of CCTV footage confirmed the complaint to be justified.  The premises was found to be 
trading outside of its licensable hours and had patrons on site until 04:00 hours.  Ei Group 
were made aware and a copy of the warning letter relating to this incident is attached at 
Appendix 2. 
 

2.6 On 14 August 2020 the premises was visited by Licensing and Greater Manchester Police. 
A jukebox was being operated and the volume of music was at an unacceptably loud level, 
which made it difficult to have a conversation.  The guidance issued by the government to 
assist premises to operate safely, states that music must be kept at a low background level 
so that voices need not be raised in order to prevent transmission of coronavirus.  A warning 
letter was served and a copy is attached at Appendix 3. 
 

Page 12



 

2.7 On 15 August 2020, a large brawl involving approximately 15-20 people took place inside the 
premises and then spilled out onto the street.  This incident was not reported to the Police. 
CCTV obtained by the Police, showed that prior to the fight taking place, covid regulations 
had been breached, large groups were sat together not socially distanced and the DPS had 
been watching football and drinking within the large group.  Still images taken from the CCTV 
at 21:54, immediately before the fight on 15 August 2020, are attached at Appendix 4. 
 

2.8 No crimes were recorded in relation to the fight that occurred on 15 August 2020; however, 
PC Thorley contacted Ei Group to advise that in his opinion, the broadcasting of football 
matches was a trigger for covid related incidents at the premises and to request that Ei Group 
Ltd considered not showing future football matches.  PC Thorley received no reply.  

 
2.9 On 11 September 2020, Licensing and Greater Manchester Police carried out a visit to the 

premises.  At the time of their visit, a DJ was playing loud music and the DPS was asked to 
turn the music down.  Following this, it is reported that the DPS, who was extremely 
intoxicated, became confrontational towards the Police.  Louise Ashton, Regulatory 
Compliance Officer, served a warning letter on the DPS.  A copy of the letter and Ms Ashton’s 
statement is attached at Appendix 5. 
 

2.10 Consideration was given to serve a Direction Notice requiring the temporary closure of the 
premises and on 14 September 2020, the Licensing Authority contacted Ei Group to request 
the immediate removal of the DPS and voluntary closure of the premises.  
 

2.11 Following this, Ei Group terminated their contract with the DPS, Ms Deborah McCallum.  The 
Council raised its concerns about the DPS remaining on site as this could present a risk.  On 
16 September 2020, Ei Group Limited provided assurance that the premises would remain 
closed whilst the DPS remained on site until a replacement was appointed. 
 

2.12 On 17 September 2020, the premises re-opened and received an inspection conducted by 
officers from Greater Manchester Police and the Licensing Authority.  During the visit, the 
DPS was found to be intoxicated and Greater Manchester Police had reasonable grounds to 
suspect the condition of the DPS at the premises was likely to cause nuisance to members 
of the public.  This resulted in Greater Manchester Police serving a Closure Notice under the 
Antisocial Behaviour Crime and Policing Act 2014, closing the premises for 24 hours.  
 

2.13 On 18 September 20202, a Direction Notice was served under the Health Protection 
(Coronavirus Restrictions) England Regulations 2020.  This notice required the premises to 
close from 18 September 2020 until 12 October 2020.  A copy of the Direction is attached at 
Appendix 6. 
 

2.14 On 18 September 2020, Ei Group Limited submitted an application to the Council to remove 

Ms Deborah McCallum from the position of DPS at the premises. 

 
2.15 The Licensing Department have received historical complaints regarding disorder and anti-

social behaviour, including noise and drug use associated with the premises dating back 
through the tenure of previously appointed Designated Premises Supervisors at the 
premises. 
 

2.16 On 4 December 2020, James Horton, Regulatory Compliance Officer, on behalf of the 
Licensing Authority acting in their capacity as a Responsible Authority under the Licensing 
Act 2003, reviewed the premises licence for Jolly Hatters, 155 Haughton Green Road, 
Denton, M34 2DJ.  A copy of the Premises Licence Review Application is attached at 
Appendix 7. 
 

 
 

Page 13



 

 
 
3. REPRESENTATIONS & EVIDENCE SUBMITTED 
 
3.1 TMBC Licensing 
 A supporting statement relating to the application provided by James Horton, Regulatory 

Compliance Officer, Licensing, is attached at Appendix 8. 
 
3.2 Greater Manchester Police 
 A statement has been provided by PC Martin Thorley in relation to his involvement with the 

premises.  This is attached at Appendix 9. 
 
3.3 TMBC Population Health 

A representation has been received from James Mallion on behalf of TMBC Population 
Health, is attached at Appendix 10. 

 
3.4 Members of the Public 

A representation has been received from a member of the public.  This is attached at 
Appendix 11. 

 
A representation has been received from a member of the public.  This is attached at 
Appendix 12. 
 
A representation has been received from a member of the public.  This is attached at 
Appendix 13. 
 
A representation has been received from a member of the public.  This is attached at 
Appendix 14. 

 
3.5 CCTV 
 CCTV obtained from the premises relating to an incident on 15 August 2020. 
 
 
4. HOME OFFICE GUIDANCE 
 
4.1 The current guidance issued by the Home Office under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

deals with the Powers of a Licensing Authority on the determination of a review, with 
particular attention being drawn to section 11.19, 11.20, 11.21 and 11.22 where a Licensing 
Authority considers action under its statutory powers:- 
 
11.19  Where the licensing authority considers that action under its statutory powers is 

appropriate, it may take any of the following steps:- 
 

 modify the conditions of the premises licence (which includes adding new conditions 
or any alteration or omission of an existing condition), for example, by reducing the 
hours of opening or by requiring door supervisors at particular times; 

 exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence, for example, to exclude 
the performance of live music or playing of recorded music (where it is not within the 
incidental live and recorded music exemption); 

 remove the designated premises supervisor, for example, because they consider that 
the problems are the result of poor management; 

 suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 

 revoke the licence. 
 
11.20  In deciding which of these powers to invoke, it is expected that licensing authorities 

should so far as possible seek to establish the cause or causes of the concerns that 
the representations identify.  The remedial action taken should generally be directed 

Page 14



 

at these causes and should always be no more than an appropriate and proportionate 
response to address the causes of concern that instigated the review.  

11.21  For example, licensing authorities should be alive to the possibility that the removal 
and replacement of the designated premises supervisor may be sufficient to remedy 
a problem where the cause of the identified problem directly relates to poor 
management decisions made by that individual.  

11.22  Equally, it may emerge that poor management is a direct reflection of poor company 
practice or policy and the mere removal of the designated premises supervisor may 
be an inadequate response to the problems presented. Indeed, where subsequent 
review hearings are generated by representations, it should be rare merely to remove 
a succession of designated premises supervisors as this would. 

 
 
5. CONCLUSION AND OPTIONS FOR THE PANEL 
 
5.1 Panel are requested to consider the evidence and decide what (if any) steps to take as it 

considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  The options available to 
the Panel are set out at the front of the report. 

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



APPENDIX 2

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

To: Any person carrying on business at the Premises including the owner proprietor and 
manager 

 

WARNING - NOTICE OF POTENTIAL ACTION 
TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF YOUR PREMISES 

 
PURSUANT TO THE HEALTH PROTECTION (CORONAVIRUS, RESTRICTIONS) (ENGLAND) 

(NO. 3) REGULATIONS 2020 (REGULATION 4 - PREMISES) 
 
This communication responds to a serious and imminent threat to public health. 
 
It is considered necessary to prevent, protect against, control or provide a public health response to 
the incidence or spread of infection in Tameside of coronavirus.  You are referred to the Regulations 
and the Government Guidance which can be found at: https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus  
 
It is intended to give you due notice of action that Tameside Council may be forced to take unless 
you take steps to make your premises covid secure. 
 
There are concerns following a visit to your premises that you and/or your staff and/or visitors to your 
premises are not adhering to the current covid restrictions. 
 
As explained to you, it is vital the restrictions in place in Greater Manchester are complied with as 
they are necessary to protect the public from the further spread of the coronavirus and the impact 
that this will have on communities and businesses.  
 
You can find out more at: https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/local-restrictions-areas-with-
an-outbreak-of-coronavirus-covid-19  
 
Greater Manchester has been experiencing an increase in the number and rate of new cases of the 
Coronavirus (COVID-19) over the past month such that Tameside and Greater Manchester is now 
on the Government's watch list.  This indicates that the rate of increase in new cases of COVID-19 
in Tameside is amongst some of the highest in England.  Local data suggests that the majority of 
new cases of COVID-19 are occurring in the community, that is, within people's own households, 
rather than in communal establishments, such as residential care or nursing homes.  We also know 
that an increasing proportion of new cases of COVID-19 are in younger people.  
 
These two factors combined mean that public places like restaurants, gyms or shops and/or licensed 
settings have the potential to be a particularly potent source of transmission for COVID-19 if these 
premises are not managed in a way that is compliant with the current regulations. 
 
This warning is necessary for the purpose of preventing, protecting against, controlling or providing 
a public health response to the incidence or spread of infection by coronavirus in Greater Manchester 
and more particularly Tameside. 

 
The premises to which this warning relates has failed to ensure effective social distancing controls, 
manage behaviour of customers on site (including where appropriate the wearing of face coverings 

 
OPERATIONS & NEIGHBOURHOODS 
Ian Saxon  
Director of Operations & Neighbourhoods 
PO BOX 317 
Ashton under Lyne, OL6 0GS 

MR/2

APPENDIX 3

Page 33

https://www.gov.uk/coronavirus
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/local-restrictions-areas-with-an-outbreak-of-coronavirus-covid-19
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/local-restrictions-areas-with-an-outbreak-of-coronavirus-covid-19


and/or restricting entry to the premises to make it covid secure) and/or prevent the spread of 
coronavirus. 
As a result the Council is now having to consider considering taking action, which could include the 
TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF YOUR PREMISES under The Health Protection (Coronavirus, 
Restrictions) (England) (No. 3) Regulations 2020.   
 
Whilst cognisant that this would be a draconian step, and would likely cause you and your business 
adverse impact, we believe this would be a necessary and proportionate means of responding to the 
serious and imminent threat to public health caused by the spread of coronavirus if you fail to take 
the necessary steps to prevent the spread of coronavirus. 
 
The Council is of the view that adequate controls and measures can be put in place to make the 
premises covid secure to avoid the need for the Council to issue a Direction to: (a) close the 
premises; (b) restrict entry into the premises; or (c) secure restrictions in relation to the location of 
persons in the premises.  
 
In the event it is necessary to issue such a direction we will be required to publish it on our website 
and communicate it as widely as possible to residents of the borough through social media. 
 
Failure to comply with the actions set out in this letter will result in action being taken without further 
notice should further breaches be observed. 
 
We know that this is a difficult time for business and none of us want to bring Covid home, putting 
our families at risk.  If we all work together in controlling the virus we can help avoid a local lockdown 
and allow a more significant return to normality and protect our economy. 
 
If you need any support or wish to discuss this letter please contact the number shown below. 
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
Ian Saxon  
Director of Operations and Neighbourhoods 
 
Name of person(s) 
receiving warning notice: 

Deborah McCallum 

Name of Premises: Jolly Hatters 
Address: 119 Town Lane 

Denton 
Tameside 
M34 2DJ 

Action required to be 
taken to control Covid19 
virus: 

Urgent action required to ensure loud music is not played at 
the premises. Any music must be played a low background 
level at all times.  

Name of Enforcement 
Officer issuing warning: 

Mike Robinson 

Signature of Enforcement 
Officer  

Contact 
No: 

07971 285 294 

Date of visit and issue of 
warning notice: 

Visit: 14/08/2020     Issue of Notice: 17/08/2020 

 

Page 34



APPENDIX 4

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 6

Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 7

Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



APPENDIX 8

Page 57



Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 9

Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Page 108



Page 109



Page 110



Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank



I, James Mallion on behalf of Public Health in their capacity as a Responsible Authority under the 

Licensing Act 2003 make representation in relation to the premises licence review at (On License) The 

Jolly Hatters, 119 Town Lane, Denton, M34 2DJ submitted to the Licensing Authority on 04 December 

2020.  

The representation relates primarily to: public safety, as well as the prevention of crime and disorder; 

and the prevention of public nuisance.  

 

The Health Protection Regulations which came into effect in March 2020 were aimed at reducing the 

overall mixing of people in the community and to avoid people gathering in enclosed indoor spaces. 

As well as some periods of closure across the hospitality sector, including some licensed premises, 

other key elements of these regulations involve venues taking reasonable measures to limit the risk 

of transmission of Covid-19 and to comply with relevant local restrictions. Venues adhering to these 

requirements is essential to reduce the spread of Covid-19 in enclosed indoor spaces due to the 

transmission routes from respiratory droplets and other close contact.  

As a Responsible Authority, we reviewed the underlying risk posed by the circulation of Covid-19 in 

the wider community during the period in question (early-July through to mid-September), in the 

context of public safety.  

The reproduction number (R number) of Covid-19 is naturally high with each infected person going on 

to infect 2-3 others if control measures are not in place. One infected person spreading the virus could 

result in up to 400 further people being infected after 30 days. This is part of the reason why adhering 

to restrictions to reduce the amount of social contact is vital in preventing transmission and more 

people becoming infected. 

It should be noted that there is evidence of substantial asymptomatic spread, which means people 

who are infected are able to pass the virus on before their symptoms actually start, and therefore 

before they are aware they have it. Evidence from the World Health Organisation also suggests that 

large numbers of small outbreaks of Covid-19 have been linked to crowded indoor spaces. We have 

also seen evidence of this in Tameside with a high number of outbreaks where transmission has 

occurred in enclosed, indoor spaces.  

At the time in question at the start of July, the rate of infection in the community in Tameside was 

lower than in the following weeks and months with approximately 30 new cases per week across the 

borough. We were still seeing the impact of the national lockdown over the preceding 3 months and 

lower levels of circulation of the virus during the summer. From here the rate of infection steadily 

increased. By mid-September, when further concerns were raised regarding the premises, there were 

over 260 new cases per week across the borough. This demonstrates the speed with which the rate 

of infection can increase, and the underlying risk from community transmission at the time in 

question. This rate continued to rise in the coming weeks, which at one time showed Tameside to be 

one of the worst affected areas in the country. By the start of November there were over 1,200 new 

cases per week across the borough. Tameside has also seen a high death rate from Covid-19 and as of 

December 2020 Tameside had the highest cumulative Covid-19 death rate in the country with over 

APPENDIX 10

Page 115



500 cumulative Covid-19 deaths. This demonstrates the severe impact that Covid-19 transmission in 

Tameside has had.    

Some of the specific concerns raised by the Tameside Licensing Team such as the failure to ensure 

social distancing was being adhered to; failure to manage the behaviour of customers; continuing to 

serve customers beyond the terminal hour on the license; and failure to prevent a large fight within 

the premises, are all factors which would potentially result in further close contact between 

customers, further increasing the risk of transmission of Covid-19.   

Based on this information I think it is appropriate to review the license for these premises as the 

evidence we have indicates that there has been an ongoing risk of Covid-19 transmission in Tameside 

and therefore failing to comply with regulations, particularly lack of social distancing, would have 

potentially increased the risk of transmission of Covid-19 and put public safety at risk.   

 

 

Page 116



From: richard sewell <r>  

Sent: 19 December 2020 13:13 

To: Licensing <licensing@tameside.gov.uk> 

Subject: TOWN LANE DENTON MANCHESTER 

 

My name is Mr Richard Sewell and I own the house facing the above licensed premise, number 124 

Town Lane. 

My elderly parents own the bungalow next door and have also had many issues with the Jolly 

Hatters and have had to call on me on a number of occasions as they felt intimidated and scared 

with the goings on at the pub across the road. 

It has been a blessing whilst the pub has been closed down as there has been no hassle from the 

pub. 

I worry about this pub reopening and us having to experience the troubles I will list below. 

Extremely loud noise and swearing outside the pub and the drinking on the front of the pub 

Bottles and cans in our gardens and smashed glasses in the hedges 

Constant coming and goings of cars and obvious drug dealing at all times of the day and night. 

Blatant disregard for current regulations in respect of COVID  

Loud music and shouting and swearing late into the night as the pub empties. 

Hassle and intimidation from drunken bar staff and managers when complaining. 

Fights and screaming outside the pub absolutely no regard for residents. 

I would be more than welcome to stand up and state my feelings about this den of iniquity ever 

reopening without massive change. 

My wife and I and other neighbours wouldn’t dream of setting foot in this place as it stands as the 

managers constantly break all laws and have no consideration for the neighbours  

Regards Mr Richard Sewell 

 

APPENDIX 11

Page 117

mailto:licensing@tameside.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



I would like to remain anonymous but I would like to make the following points when you consider 
the licence review for the Jolly Hatters Pub, Town Lane, Denton.  
 
I live very close to the pub  - on Town Lane,  and since it has been closed it has been a really 
wonderful quiet street to live on. It’s actually sad to think that it might be going back to what it was 
like when the pub was open.  
 
Unfortunately when this pub was open - please note the following points :- 
 
1. Noisy very rowdy behaviour when it was closing time - I have young children and this was 
particularly stressful for us during the night when we were being awoken by the loud noisy 
behaviour. People coming out of the pub with their drinks and sitting on walls drinking and being 
rowdy and arguments, fights etc. This was not just an occasional occurrence this happened every 
weekend.  Car doors constantly slamming from taxis in the night picking people up from the pub.  
 
2. Suspicious drop off activity with numerous people coming out of the pub - meeting someone in a 
vehicle on the corner and then going back into the pub.  
 
3.  My late father felt intimidated and would not go out of his home after dark and on one occasion 
had something thrown at his window when he was stood there washing up  which cracked it - and 
this was from people out of the pub as they were sitting on the wall with beer bottles and they had 
come from the pub.  
 
4.  Police observed regularly going to the pub with sirens on.  
 
5. People parking all up the street and side roads and mostly leaving their cars until the next day but 
some were observed looking worse for wear and driving home.  
 
6.  If this really has to re-open as a pub I would want it to be a family/restaurant pub and to close at 
a respectful time.  
 
As previously stated I confirm I wish to remain anonymous but I can be contacted on this email if you 
require any further information.   
 
I confirm I live on Town Lane.  
 
 

APPENDIX 12

Page 119



This page is intentionally left blank



I and my wife XXXXXXX Gillian are both willing / able to either attend at the hearing or 
submit representation with regards to the issues I have experienced from these premises 
 
A Local Resident Impact Statement of the Jolly Hatters  Town Lane, Denton, 
Tameside  
My name is xxxxxxxxxx. My family home has been on Town Lane since 1957. Myself and 
my wife live in the family home. My eldest daughter, her husband and my two grandchildren 
live on Town Lane. My youngest daughter and her husband live on Town Lane. It is 
reasonable to assume I know Town Lane and have a vested interest the wellbeing of this 
neighbourhood. 
 
The Jolly Hatters 
When the Jolly Hatters was originally built as a large country pub, there were just a few 
houses on Town Lane. It was enclosed by agricultural green fields on a pleasant country 
walk from Denton centre along Town Lane and Ross Lave Lane towards Reddish. Urban 
development has taken place, and the Jolly Hatters is centrally situated now in a highly 
developed residential area. The Jolly Hatters is less than 100 yards from Greswell Infant and 
Junior School. It is within 800 yards of St Thomas More secondary school. It is next to  a four 
story development of flats that was build when the “Elsinor Hotel” was demolished when it 
became unprofitable. These flats now house some of the most vulnerable people in our local 
society including partially sighted and mentally vulnerable who require round the clock care.  
 
For people moving into, and growing up in the developing and expanding communities just 
off Town Lane in Denton,  the Jolly Hatters once was a centre of the community. I took my 
father there on a Sunday lunch time. I met my friends there, my parents went there. The 
small car park at the front held only four cars but in any case most locals would walk to the 
pub. 
 
 
The recent Jolly Hatters 
Over the last 15 years the pub has changed. The people and friends I know won’t use this 
pub any more because of what it has now become. People tell me they would avoid living in 
the vicinity of the pub, because of the reputation it has. We have seen and reported so many 
antisocial incidents at the pub that I have lost count.  
 
Crime and Drug taking 
Drug taking and dealing takes place both inside the pub and on the front beer garden and 
also takes place on the surrounding streets were the pub clientele do their deal, have their 
fix, and go back to the pub. I have witnessed some of this first hand and reported it to the 
relevant authorities.  
 
Disorder, Damage and Control of Clientele  
The current and previous Owners, Management Teams and Dedicated Premises Licence 
holders over the last 15 years have all failed to control some of the customers who behave 
antisocially, and they have shown  no interest in controlling their behaviour. Most of these 
type of customers have the attitude of “If you don’t like how I behave - then move”, or “you 
shouldn’t buy a house near a pub and not expect noise”. Recent posts on Facebook testified 
to this attitude including calling local residents “Retards” and accusing local families living 
opposite the Jolly Hatters of being the ones who complained and causing the pub to close, 
and asking them to “move”. I had these posts removed by the people who run the ‘Denton 
Memories” Facebook site as they were threatening and people did not feel safe. Would you 
really want a pub who have these types of characters as clientele opposite your house, or 
near where you live? 
 

APPENDIX 13

Page 121



There have been a regular incidents where the windows at the front of the pub being ‘put 
through’ over the years. The most recent only a few weeks before the recent pub closure, 
and the landlord decided it would be a good idea to have them repaired at half past 
midnight. Residents had to put up with all the drilling and banging until the early 
hours. People do not feel safe living near a pub that constantly and consistently attracts 
antisocial disorder. 
 
 
Music disturbance 
The Jolly Hatters has a Film(TV) Live Music, Recorded Music and an Entertainments 
Licence until 1am, Monday to Sunday and until 2am on New Years Eve/day.  
 
Music and Karaoke is played until late and the front doors are left open continuously. On the 
odd occurrence where they are shut, the smokers open them again to go outside to have a 
cigarette leaving the doors open, or the people taking drugs open the doors to go outside, 
meet their dealer, have a fix, and return again leaving the doors wedged open. Music is 
played and heard into the early hours. No one in charge of the pub ever bothers to supervise 
this. This has happened with every single management team put in place since 2006 with no 
exception.  
 
 
Public safety and Antisocial behaviour 
People leave the premises openly drunk late at night. They wait noisily outside for a taxi or 
drive their vehicles and rev them loudly outside residents homes. Screaming and shouting is 
an often occurrence.  
 
Clients park their cars or white vans, covering the pavements in a way that the  vulnerable 
people living nearby cannot walk side by side with a carer, and they have to walk single file 
past the vehicles, They make it difficult for a anyone with a pushchair or wheelchair to pass 
and they usually have to go into the road to get around the vehicle. 
 
During summer, some of the people parking directly in front of the front beer garden open 
their car doors to play music on the car or van stereo very loudly for the entertainment of 
people in the front beer garden that faces residential homes on the Lane. 
 
During City or United football matches the beer garden clientele often spill out onto the road 
and drinking takes place on the street. This results in glasses and bottles being left on 
residents walls at the front of their properties, and quite often smashed glass strewn over the 
pavements and road. The school crossing for Greswell Junior School is 10 yards up the road 
from the pub and glass regularly has to be cleared so it doesn’t harm the children, going to 
and from the school. 
 
Walls of local gardens have been urinated on, or vomited over from clients coming  out of 
the pub drunk. 
 
Recently late at night, a female client who seemed to be drunk was locked in a car by what 
appeared to be her partner, she was screaming at the top of her voice to be let out and was 
swearing profusely. This was at a time of night when residents can quite rightly expect to 
have a decent nights sleep. 
 
Landlords have been known to fight with clientele openly in the street. 
 
 
Continuous Management Changes 

Page 122



Irrespective of whoever the Owner, Management team and DPLH have been in the last 15 
years, the Jolly Hatters has never been controlled satisfactorily.  The style of the pub has 
changed back and forth a number of times  with each new Owner, Management company, or 
DPLH. The same type of clientele are re-attracted and return every time without fail.  
 
In my opinion, Owners, Managers and DLPH’s have all come to the same conclusion that 
the only way to make it profitable is to run it as a Fun Pub, with recorded music, sports TV, 
live music and karaoke.  This attracts a clientele from a wider demographic area who are 
looking for specific type of entertainment very similar to the Sports Bars in Manchester City 
Centre and the bars that used to be available in Staley-Vegas in it’s hay-day. This type of 
pub is inappropriate and not suitable for a developed residential area. With its 1am licence 
people do not see the need to go into Manchester and pay more for their ‘booze’ and all the 
expense of taxi’s, when they can get all they need at the Jolly Hatters in Denton.  
 
It is unacceptable for a pub in a highly residential area such as Town Lane to have a 
Licence, to stay open with live music, indoor sporting events TV etc until 1am Monday to 
Sunday. 
 
 
Front Car Park conversion to a Beer Garden  
 
The area at the rear of the property was never used as a beer garden. The front car park 
only held four cars and this has now been converted into a front of the house beer garden. It 
was done at the front because the rear garden area that could have been developed backed 
onto a previous DPLH mothers property and we believe that he didn’t want any disturbance 
to her.  
 
Whatever the reason, since the front was converted, the anti social behaviour and noise has 
increased dramatically. During the day especially if it’s good weather, the clientele numbers 
can swell and the noise can be heard in down the Lane. If there is standing room only, 
drinking is done on the street. The drug using clients also use the benches to sit on whilst 
waiting for their dealers to arrive with their ordered drugs. You are less noticeable to the 
residents sat down rather than stood up. 
 
The benches that have been put at the front provide a nice little loitering area for the pub 
clientele when they leave the premises at night. They stay sitting or lying (depending on how 
drunk they are) on these benches shouting, arguing and basically making a nuisance of 
themselves, until their taxi arrives or until they get bored and decide to go home.  
 
This area at the front of the pub was never designed for this type of use as a beer garden, 
and Tameside MBC never consulted any of the residents to tell them that the landlord at the 
time had applied for change of usage. Tameside did not carry out an impact assessment on 
the residents.  
  
Next steps 
There have been so many chances for this pub to improve over recent years, and all without 
fail have failed to respect the local residents needs. There have been many permutations of 
management put in place including single people, couples, families, inexperienced and 
experienced people and supervisory management companies,  all of which have reverted 
back to allowing the same old clientele back who behave criminally and 
antisocially. Because it is a backwater pub, away from the main road, drug deals can be 
done more easily. There are no parking restrictions to stop cars drawing up outside, and its 
an easy location for the drug dealers to control. It is an easy place to behave antisocially and 
then just disappear into the backstreets. The antisocial and criminal behaviour has to stop 
along with the noise. With every new management, in a matter of weeks of reopening, it 

Page 123



seems it is back as business as usual, attracting the same kind of clientele. How may times 
do the residents have to put up with this?  It is time to close the pub permanently to keep the 
peace and quiet residents deserve. 
 
History now shows failure by every single DPLH and owner over the last 15 years.  More 
than enough chances have been given to the management and the owners of this pub to get 
it right, and letting it remain open simply continues failure. Owners, or new Owners, will say 
that “the past is in the past and that it is a new start with a new DPLH or Owner” and that the 
New DPLH will manage it better - but they don”t, they never do, the last 15 years has proved 
the case.  They will argue that licensing restrictions put on the pub will be unfair on any new 
DPLH they want to put in place - but it affects the locals who have to put up with it all. They 
will argue that they will find someone fit and proper to run the pub - I would argue that they 
would say that wouldn’t they, they have never managed it yet, repeatedly and over and over 
and over again, and  of course they don’t have to live opposite or nearby and put up with the 
pub near them.  They have had enough repeated chances and this pub should never reopen 
- it is time to acknowledge that it has had its day and move on. 
 
 
(a)        Preferably, the current premises should have a Licence to sell alcohol refused 
permanently, it has had many chances to operate within the bounds of its licence and has 
failed at every attempt over the last 15 years to do so.  
 
(b)        The premises  should be allowed to be reused as a different business in line with 
Tameside MBC planning guidance, and not re-opened as a public house. 
 
(c)        If the council seem fit to give it one more chance yet again, the following special 
conditions must apply: 
 
            1          The front Beer Garden must be reverted back to a car park. 
 
            2          No music or entertainment licence should be given. 
 
            3          The pub must close by 11pm every night including weekends. 
 
            4          Security must be employed inside and outside the premises during opening 
hours and until 1/2 hour after closing time to discourage antisocial behaviour and drug 
taking. 
 
Recent Closure for Covid Measures Violations and Antisocial Behaviour Violations 
 
The recent closure of the Jolly Hatters due to the DPLH violating antisocial disorder 
measures typifies the pub clientele and management we have endured over the last 15 
years. It is closed at the moment and local life is peaceful. Permanent closure would keep it 
peaceful. Local people who like to go for a drink in a local pub are well served by local public 
houses within 1/2 a mile of the Jolly Hatters and its closure would be no great loss. 
 
 
 

Page 124



Dear Madam,  
                       I am limited in my response because of the tablet I am working on, there are 
issues in the way that this has been handled and will be brought up at a later date if necessary. 
                        The Jolly Hatters was first licensed in 1857 and I have a letter from Mr 
Geoffrey Ogden, as follows:  I am 86 years old and have been going in the jolly Hatters, town 
lane for 61 years . 
          I have difficulty walking any long distance, so the Jolly is the ideal distance for me to 
walk . 
         I am not the only person about my age who still go in the Jolly, many of my friends are 
in their seventies who have been customers for years  
          Please be kind to us and allow the Jolly to re-open as soon as possible. 
                                            Thank you  G Ogden  
 
 
       
As you can appreciate Mr Ogden along with is friends and families go in the Jolly Hatters 
most days and it really is a communal, sociable place in the community.  
                                                                                               Yours Sincerely, 
                                                                                                                      Stephen. Henson.  
 

APPENDIX 14

Page 125



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. MINUTES
	Minutes of 12 Jan 2021

	4. APPLICATION FOR A REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE - JOLLY HATTERS, 119 TOWN LANE, DENTON, M34 2DJ
	APPENDIX 1
	APPENDIX 2
	APPENDIX 3
	APPENDIX 4
	APPENDIX 5
	APPENDIX 6
	APPENDIX 7
	APPENDIX 8
	APPENDIX 9
	APPENDIX 10
	APPENDIX 11
	APPENDIX 12
	APPENDIX 13
	APPENDIX 14


